Odor and Corrosion Control for the Pump Stations in the Township of Galloway



Due Date: Tuesday, August 8, 2023 @11:00 am 300 E. Jimmie Leeds Road Galloway Township, NJ 08205

NOTICE TO BIDDERS

Notice is hereby given that the sealed bid will be received by the Township of Galloway on **Tuesday, August 8, 2023 @11:00 am** in the Office of the Township Clerk, 300 E. Jimmie Leeds Road, Galloway, NJ 08205, at which time and place responses will be opened and read aloud for: **Odor and Corrosion Control for Pump Stations.**

Bid responses must be made on the standard bid forms and submitted in SEALED ENVELOPES addressed to: Galloway Township Clerk, 300 Jimmie Leeds Road, Galloway Township, NJ 08205 and clearly marked on the outside "Odor and Corrosion Control for Pump Stations #23-001" All proposals/bids are to be submitted with one (1) original and one (1) copy.

All addendum will be issued on the website. Therefore, all interested respondents should check the website from now through bid opening. It is the sole responsibility of the respondent to be knowledgeable of all addenda(s) related to this procurement.

Specifications and instructions to bidders may be obtained at the Purchasing Office or through the Township website at <u>www.gtnj.org</u>.

Bidders shall comply with the requirements of N.J.S.A. 10:5-31 and N.J.A.C. 17-27 et seq.

Nina D. Williams, QPA Purchasing Agent

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Section 1 Introduction

Introduction Summary Administrative Conditions and Requirements Schedule Township Representative for this Solicitation Proposal Submission Information Disclosure of Investment Activities in Iran & Russia-Belarus Public Emergency Subcontractors Multiple Proposal Not Accepted Force Majeure Challenge of Specifications Payment Non Payment of Penalties and Interest on Overdue Bills Source of Specifications/ IFB Packages Altering Official Document **IFB** Preparation of Forms Qualifications Duration of Contract

Section 2 Instruction to Bidders and Statutory Requirements

- I. Submission of Bids
- II. Bid Security and Bonding Requirements
- III. Interpretation and Addenda
- IV. Brand Names, Standards of Quality and Performance
- V. Insurance and Indemnification
- VI. Pricing Information for Preparation of Bids
- VII. Statutory and Other Requirements
- VIII. Method of Contract Award
- IX. Causes for Rejecting Bids
- X. Termination of Contract
- XI. Payment

Appendix A Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 Mandatory Equal Employment Opportunity Language

Section 3 Specifications

Odor and Corrosion Control/Specifications for Bioxide Bioxide@ Chemical Feed System and Startup Services

TABLE OF CONTENTS Cont.

Section 4 Required Documents to be submitted with Bid

Bid Document Check List **Proposal Page(s) Acknowledgement of Addenda (If Applicable)** Exceptions Hold Harmless Agreement **Stockholder Disclosure Certification (form must be notarized)** Non-Collusion Affidavit (forms must be notarized) Bidders Affidavit (forms must be notarized) **List of Subcontractors (form must be notarized)** Disclosure of Investment Activities in Iran & Russia-Belarus Affirmative Action Compliance Disclosure Statement Right to Extend 5 References

* Bold items are mandatory

Section 1 Introduction

Introduction

The Township of Galloway, hereafter "Township" is requesting bids from qualified vendors for Odor and Corrosion Control for Pump Stations as described herein. It is the Township's intent to establish an agreement with qualified vendor(s) for Odor and Corrosion Control for the Pump Stations throughout the Township of Galloway.

Administrative Conditions and Requirements for Invitation for Bid (IFB)

The following items express the conditions and requirements of this IFB. Together with the other IFB sections, they apply to the IFB process, the subsequent contract, and project production. Any proposed change, modification, or exception to these conditions and requirements may be the basis for the Township to determine the proposal as non-responsive to the IFB and will be a factor in the determination of an award of a contract. The contents of the proposal of the successful respondent, as accepted by the Township, will become part of any contract awarded as a result of this IFB.

Schedule:

Below are the dates for the release of IFB, proposal review, evaluation review and award:

1.	Release of IFB	Thursday, July 27, 2023
2.	Q & A	Tuesday, August 1, 2023 (deadline at noon)
3.	Proposal Due Date	Thursday, August 8, 2023 @ 11:00 AM
4.	Evaluation Completion Date	Friday, August 9, 2023
5.	Governing Body Action	Tuesday, August 15, 2023
6.	Contract Commence Date	September 1, 2023

Township Representative for this Solicitation

Questions regarding this IFB should be submitted in writing to Nina D. Williams, Purchasing Agent via email to <u>nwilliams@gtnj.org</u> no later than **Tuesday**, **August 1**, **2023 noon**. Please note the aforementioned contact is authorized only to direct the attention of prospective respondent to various portions of the requirements so that they may read and interpret each portion for themselves. <u>NO</u> employee of the Township is authorized to give interpretations of any portion of the IFB or to give information as to the requirements for the IFB in addition to that already contained in the IFB unless as a formal addenda.

Interpretations of the IFB or additional information as to its requirements, when necessary, shall be communicated to prospective respondents only by written addendum issued by the Purchasing Agent of the Township of Galloway.

When submitting questions, please put the company name, phone number, email address and IFB Project name on the request.

Bid Submission Information

One (1) Original signed in ink and One (1) copy.

Clearly marked on the sealed envelope the Title of the bid, name of responding firm and addressed to the Township Clerk, 300 E. Jimmie Leeds Road, Galloway Township, NJ 08205. The original proposal shall be signed in ink and marked to distinguish it from the one (1) copy. Faxed proposals will not be accepted.

Disclosure of Investment Activities in Iran & Russia-Belarus

P.L. 2012, c.25 prohibits State and local public contracts with persons or entities engaging in certain investment activities in energy or finance sectors of Iran. Bidders must indicate if they comply with the law by certifying the form.

Public Emergency

In the event of a Public Emergency declared at the Local, State or Federal Level, if the Township opts to extend terms and conditions of the IFB; the contractor agrees to extend the terms and conditions of this IFB, whether existing, expiring or expired no longer than six months, for goods and/or services for the duration of the emergency. In the event the original contractor cannot meet this requirement, the Township may solicit the goods and/or services from any respondent on this contract.

Subcontractors

The Township will consider the primary contractor to be the sole point of contact with regard to contract matters. The primary contractor will be required to assume sole responsibility for delivery of all services.

Multiple Proposals Not Accepted

More than one proposal from an individual, a firm or partnership, a corporation or association under the same name shall not be considered.

Force Majeure

Neither party shall be responsible for any resulting loss nor obligation to fulfill duties as specified in any of the terms or provisions of this Agreement. If the fulfillment of any term or provision of this Agreement is delayed or prevented by any revolutions, insurrections, riots, wars, acts of enemies, national emergencies, strikes, floods, fires, acts of God, or by any cause not within the control of the party whose performance is interfered with which by the exercise of reasonable diligence such part is unable to prevent. Additionally, if the fulfillment of any of the terms and provisions of the Agreement is delayed or prevented by any court order, or action or injunction or other such agreement, this Agreement shall become voidable by the Township by notice to each party.

The terms of the Agreement shall be construed and interpreted, and all respective rights and duties of the parties shall be governed by the laws of the State of New Jersey.

Challenge of Specifications

Any respondent who wishes to challenge a specification shall file such challenge in writing with the Purchasing Agent no less than three (3) business days prior to the opening of the IFB's.

Challenges filed after that time shall be considered void and having no impact on the Township or the award of contract.

Payment

Invoices shall be submitted and must specify, in detail, the period for which payment is claimed, the services performed during the prescribed period, the amount claimed and correlation between the services rendered, and all backup documentation (time logs, receipts, etc.).

Non Payment of Penalties and Interest on Overdue Bills

Public funds may be used to pay only for goods delivered or services rendered. The Township will not pay penalties and/or interest on overdue bills. No employee is authorized to sign a letter of credit or any other document/application that represents a legal commitment on the part of the Township to pay additional fees.

Source of specifications/ IFB Packages

Official Township Request for Proposal packages are available on the Township's website: <u>www.gtnj.org</u> at no cost to the prospective respondents. All addenda are posted on the site. Potential respondents are cautioned that they are responding at their own risk if a third party supplied the specifications that may or may not be complete. The Township is not responsible for third party supplied IFB Documents.

Altering Official Document

Respondents shall not write in any margins or alter the official content of the Township's IFB Documents.

IFB Preparation of Forms

Documents must be signed in ink by the respondent. No pencil notations will be accepted. All quotations shall be made with a typewriter, computer or pen and ink. Any notations showing any erasure alteration must be initialed by the respondent in ink. Unit prices and totals are to be inserted in the spaces provided.

Qualifications

It shall be necessary for the bidder to present evidence/documentation that he/she is in the <u>Odor and</u> <u>Control</u> business and that he/she has been in business for at least <u>5</u> years in this particular field, and can submit a suitable record of satisfactorily completing similar projects. In addition to the above he/she shall submit evidence that his/her company has the necessary equipment to carry out this type of operation.

Duration of Contract

The duration of the contract shall be for one (1) year with a 2^{nd} and 3^{rd} year renewal option at the discretion of the Township of Galloway and contingent upon availability of funding.

Section 2 Instruction to Bidders and Statutory Requirements

I. SUBMISSION OF BIDS

- A. Sealed bids shall be received by the contracting unit, hereinafter referred to as "Township of Galloway," in accordance with public advertisement as required by law, with a copy of said notice being attached hereto and made a part of these specifications.
- B. Sealed bids will be received by the designated representative on *Tuesday, August 8, 2023 @11:00 am, 300 E. Jimmie Leeds Road, Galloway Township, NJ 08205* as stated in the Notice to Bidders, and at such time and place will be publicly opened and read aloud.
- C. The bid shall be submitted in a sealed envelope: (1) addressed to the Township, (2) bearing the name and address of the bidder written on the face of the envelope, and (3) clearly marked "BID" with the contract title and/or bid # of the contract being bid.
- D. It is the bidder's responsibility that bids are presented to the Township at the time and at the place designated. Bids may be hand delivered or mailed; however, the Township disclaims any responsibility for bids forwarded by regular or overnight mail. If the bid is sent by express mail service, the designation in sub-section C, above, must also appear on the outside of the express mail envelope. Bids received after the designated time and date will be returned unopened.
- E. Sealed bids forwarded to the Township before the time of opening of bids may be withdrawn upon written application of the bidder who shall be required to produce evidence showing that the individual is or represents the principal or principals involved in the bid. Once bids have been opened, they shall remain firm for a period of sixty (60) calendar days.
- F. All prices and amounts must be written in ink or preferably machine-printed. Bids containing any conditions, omissions, unexplained erasures or alterations, items not called for in the bid proposal form, attachment of additive information not required by the specifications, or irregularities of any kind, may be rejected by the Township. Any changes, whiteouts, strikeouts, etc. in the bid must be initialed in ink by the person signing the bid.
- G. Each bid proposal form must give the full business address, business phone, fax, e-mail if available, the contact person of the bidder, and be signed by an authorized representative as follows:
 - Bids by partnerships must furnish the full name of all partners and must be signed in the partnership name by one of the members of the partnership or by an authorized representative, followed by the signature and designation of the person signing.
 - Bids by corporations must be signed in the legal name of the corporation, followed by the name of the State in which incorporated and must contain the signature and designation of the president, secretary or other person authorized to bind the corporation in the matter.
 - Bids by sole-proprietorship shall be signed by the proprietor.
 - When requested, satisfactory evidence of the authority of the officer signing shall be furnished.

Bidder should be aware of the following statutes that represent "Truth in Contracting" laws:

• N.J.S.A. 2C:21-34, et seq. governs false claims and representations by bidders. It is a serious crime for the bidder to knowingly submit a false claim and/or knowingly make material misrepresentation.

- N.J.S.A. 2C:27-10 provides that a person commits a crime if said person offers a benefit to a public servant for an official act performed or to be performed by a public servant, which is a violation of official duty.
- N.J.S.A. 2C:27-11 provides that a bidder commits a crime if said person, directly or indirectly, confers or agrees to confer any benefit not allowed by law to a public servant.
- Bidder should consult the statutes or legal counsel for further information.

II. BID SECURITY AND BONDING REQUIREMENTS

The following provisions if indicated by an (X), shall be applicable to this bid and be made a part of the bid documents:

□ A. BID GUARANTEE (NO BID GUARANTEE REQUIRED FOR THIS BID)

Bidder shall submit with the bid a certified check, cashier's check or bid bond in the amount of ten percent (10%) of the total price bid, but not in excess of \$20,000, payable unconditionally to the Township. When submitting a Bid Bond, it shall contain Power of Attorney for full amount of Bid Bond from a surety company authorized to do business in the State of New Jersey and acceptable to the Township. The check or bond of the unsuccessful bidder(s) shall be returned pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:11-24a. The check or bond of the bidder to whom the contract is awarded shall be retained until a contract is executed and the required performance bond or other security is submitted. The check or bond of the successful bidder shall be forfeited if the bidder fails to enter into a contract pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:11-21.

Failure to submit a bid guarantee shall result in rejection of the bid.

□B. CONSENT OF SURETY

Bidder shall submit with the bid a Certificate (Consent of Surety) with Power of Attorney for full amount of bid price from a Surety Company authorized to do business in the State of New Jersey and acceptable to the Township stating that it will provide said bidder with a Performance Bond in the full amount of the bid. This certificate shall be obtained in order to confirm that the bidder to whom the contract is awarded will furnish Performance and Payment Bonds from an acceptable surety company on behalf of said bidder, any or all subcontractors or by each respective subcontractor or by any combination thereof which results in performance security equal to the total amount of the contract, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:11-22.

Failure to submit a consent of surety form shall result in rejection of the bid.

\Box C. PERFORMANCE BOND

Bidder shall simultaneously with the delivery of the executed contract, submit an executed bond in the amount of one hundred percent (100%) of the acceptable bid as security for the faithful performance of this contract.

The performance bond provided shall not be released until final acceptance of the whole work and then only if any liens or claims have been satisfied. The surety on such bond or bonds shall be a duly authorized surety company authorized to do business in the State of New Jersey pursuant to N.J.S.A. 17:31-5.

Failure to submit this with the executed contract shall be cause for declaring the contract null and void pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:11-22.

D. LABOR AND MATERIAL (PAYMENT) BOND

Bidder shall with the delivery of the performance bond submit an executed payment bond to guarantee payment to laborers and suppliers for the labor and material used in the work performed under the contract. Failure to submit a labor and material bond with the performance bond shall be cause for declaring the contract null and void.

\Box E. MAINTENANCE BOND

Upon acceptance of the work by the Township, the contractor shall submit a maintenance bond (N.J.S.A. 40A:11-16.3) in an amount not to exceed _____% of the project costs guaranteeing against defective quality of work or materials for the period of:

____1 year 2 years

III. INTERPRETATION AND ADDENDA

- A. The bidder understands and agrees that its bid is submitted on the basis of the specifications prepared by the Township. The bidder accepts the obligation to become familiar with these specifications.
- B. Bidders are expected to examine the specifications and related bid documents with care and observe all their requirements. Ambiguities, errors or omissions noted by bidders should be promptly reported in writing to the appropriate official. Any prospective bidder who wishes to challenge a bid specification shall file such challenges in writing with the contracting agent no less than three business days prior to the opening of the bids. Challenges filed after that time shall be considered void and having no impact on the contracting unit or the award of a contract pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:11-13. In the event the bidder fails to notify the Township of such ambiguities, errors or omissions, the bidder shall be bound by the requirements of the specifications and the bidder's submitted bid.
- C. No oral interpretation and or clarification of the meaning of the specifications for any goods and services will be made to any bidder. Such request shall be in writing, addressed to the Township's representative stipulated in the specification. In order to be given consideration, a written request must be received at least seven (7) business days prior to the date fixed for the opening of the bid for goods and services.

All interpretations, clarifications and any supplemental instructions will be in the form of written addenda to the specifications, and will be distributed to all prospective bidders. All addenda so issued shall become part of the specification and bid documents, and shall be acknowledged by the bidder in the bid. The Township's interpretations or corrections thereof shall be final.

When issuing addenda, the Township shall provide required notice prior to the official receipt of bids to any person who has submitted a bid or who has received a bid package pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:11-23c.1.

- D. Discrepancies in Bids
 - 1. If the amount shown in words and its equivalent in figures do not agree, the written words shall be binding. Ditto marks are not considered writing or printing and shall not be used.
 - 2. In the event that there is a discrepancy between the unit prices and the extended totals, the unit prices shall prevail. In the event there is an error of the summation of the extended totals, the computation by the Township of the extended totals shall govern.
- E. Pre-Bid Conference

If stated in the Notice to Bidders:

X A Pre-Bid Conference is not required for this bid.

IV. BRAND NAMES, STANDARDS OF QUALITY AND PERFORMANCE

- A. Brand names and/or descriptions used in these specifications are to acquaint bidders with the types of goods and services desired and will be used as a standard by which goods and services offered as equivalent will be evaluated.
- B. Variations between the goods and services described and the goods and services offered are to be fully identified and described by the bidder on a separate sheet and submitted with the bid proposal form. Vendor literature WILL NOT suffice in explaining exceptions to these specifications. In the absence of any exceptions by the bidder, it will be presumed and required that the goods and services as described in the bid specification be provided or performed.
- C. It is the responsibility of the bidder to document and/or demonstrate the equivalency of the goods and services offered. The Township reserves the right to evaluate the equivalency of the goods and services.
- D. In submitting its bid, the bidder certifies that the goods and services to be furnished will not infringe upon any valid patent or trademark and that the successful bidder shall, at its own expense, defend any and all actions or suits charging such infringement, and will save the Township harmless from any damages resulting from such infringement.
- E. Only manufactured and farm products of the United States, wherever available, shall be used pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:11-18.
- F. The contractor shall guarantee any or all goods and services supplied under these specifications. Defective or inferior goods shall be replaced at the expense of the contractor. The contractor will be responsible for return freight or restocking charges.

V. INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION

The insurance documents indicated by an (X) shall include but are not limited to the following coverage's.

A. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

X 1. Worker's Compensation Insurance

Worker's Compensation insurance shall be maintained in full force during the life of the contract, covering all employees engaged in performance of the contract pursuant to N.J.S.A. 34:15-12(a) and N.J.A.C. 12:235-1.6.

X 2. General Liability Insurance

General Liability Insurance shall be provided with limits of no less than \$1,000,000.00 any one person and \$1,000,000.00 any one accident for bodily injury and \$1,000,000.00 aggregate for property damage, and shall be maintained in full force during the life of the contract.

\mathbf{X} 3. Automotive Liability Insurance

Automotive Liability insurance covering contractor for claims arising from owned, hired and non-owned vehicles with limits of no less than \$500,000.00 any one person and \$1,000,000.00 any one accident for bodily injury and \$1,000,000.00 each accident for property damage, shall be maintained in full force during the life of the contract.

B. CERTIFICATES OF THE REQUIRED INSURANCE

Certificates of Insurance for those policies required above shall be submitted with the contract. Such coverage shall be with an insurance company authorized to do business in the State of New Jersey and shall name the Township as an additional insured.

Self-insured contractors shall submit an affidavit attesting to their self-insured coverage and shall name the Township as an additional insured.

\mathbf{X} C. INDEMNIFICATION

Bidder shall indemnify and hold harmless the Township from all claims, suits or actions, and damages or costs of every name and description to which the Township may be subjected or put by reason of injury to the person or property of another, or the property of the Township, resulting from negligent acts or omissions on the part of the contractor, the contractor's agents, servants or subcontractors in the delivery of goods and services, or in the performance of the work under the contract.

VI. PRICING INFORMATION FOR PREPARATION OF BIDS

A. The Township is exempt from any local, state or federal sales, use or excise tax.

- B. Estimated Quantities (Open-End Contracts): The Township has attempted to identify the item(s) and the estimated amounts of each item bid to cover its requirements; however, past experience shows that the amount ordered may be different than that submitted for bidding. The right is reserved to decrease or increase the quantities specified in the specifications pursuant to N.J.A.C. 5:30-11.2 and 11.10. NO MINIMUM PURCHASE IS IMPLIED OR GUARANTEED.
- C. Contractor shall be responsible for obtaining any applicable permits or licenses from any government entity that has jurisdiction to require the same. All bids submitted shall have included this cost.
- D. Bidders shall insert prices for furnishing goods and services required by these specifications. Prices shall be net, including any charges for packing, crating, containers, etc. All transportation charges shall be fully prepaid by the contractor, F.O.B. destination and placement at locations specified by the Township. As specified, placement may require inside deliveries. No additional charges will be allowed for any transportation costs resulting from partial shipments made for the contractor's convenience.

VII. STATUTORY AND OTHER REQUIREMENTS

The following are mandatory requirements of this bid and contract.

A. MANDATORY AFFIRMATIVE ACTION CERTIFICATION

No firm may be issued a contract unless it complies with the affirmative action provisions of N.J.S.A. 10:5-31 et seq. and N.J.A.C. 17:27-1 et seq. The following information summarizes the full, required regulatory text, which is included as Exhibit A of this bid specification.

1. Goods and Services (including professional services) Contracts

Each contractor shall submit to the public agency, after notification of award but prior to execution of a goods and services contract, one of the following three documents:

- i. A photocopy of a valid letter that the contractor is operating under an existing Federally approved or sanctioned affirmative action program (good for one year from the date of the letter); or
- ii. A photocopy of a Certificate of Employee Information Report approval, issued in accordance with N.J.A.C. 17:27-4; or
- iii. A photocopy of an Employee Information Report (Form AA 302) provided by the Division and distributed to the public agency to be completed by the contractor in accordance with N.J.A.C. 17:27-4.

2. Maintenance/Construction Contracts

After notification of award, but prior to signing the contract, the contractor shall submit to the public agency compliance officer and the Division of Contract Compliance and Equal Employment Opportunity in Public Contracts (Division) an initial project workforce report (Form AA201) provided to the public agency by the Division for distribution to and completion by the contractor, in accordance with N.J.A.C. 17:27-7.

The contractor shall also submit a copy of the Monthly Project Workforce Report once a month thereafter for the duration of the contract to the Division and to the public agency compliance officer. The contractor shall also cooperate with the public agency in the payment of budgeted funds, as is necessary, for on-the job and/or off-the-job programs for outreach and training of minorities and women.

B. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT OF 1990

Discrimination on the basis of disability in contracting for the purchase of goods and services is prohibited. Bidders are required to read Americans With Disabilities language that is included as Appendix A of this specification and agree that the provisions of Title II of the Act are made a part of the contract. The contractor is obligated to comply with the Act and to hold the Township harmless.

C. STOCKHOLDER DISCLOSURE

N.J.S.A. 52:25-24.2 provides that no corporation or partnership shall be awarded any contract for the performance of any work or the furnishing of any goods and services, unless, prior to the receipt of the bid or accompanying the bid of said corporation or partnership, bidders shall submit a statement setting forth the names and addresses

of all stockholders in the corporation or partnership who own ten percent or more of its stock of any class, or of all individual partners in the partnership who own a ten percent or greater interest therein. The included Statement of Ownership shall be completed and attached to the bid proposal. This requirement applies to all forms of corporations and partnerships, including, but not limited to, limited partnerships, limited liability corporations, limited liability partnerships and Subchapter S corporations. Failure to submit a stockholder disclosure document shall result in rejection of the bid.

D. PROOF OF BUSINESS REGISTRATION

N.J.S.A. 52:32-44 requires that each bidder (contractor) submit proof of business registration with the bid proposal. Proof of registration shall be a copy of the bidder's Business Registration Certificate (BRC). A BRC is obtained from the New Jersey Division of Revenue. Information on obtaining a BRC is available on the internet at <u>www.nj.gov/njbgs</u> or by phone at (609) 292-1730. N.J.S.A. 52:32-44 imposes the following requirements on contractors and all subcontractors that **knowingly** provide goods or perform services for a contractor fulfilling this contract:

- 1) The contractor shall provide written notice to its subcontractors and suppliers to submit proof of business registration to the contractor;
- 2) Prior to receipt of final payment from a contracting agency, a contractor must submit to the contacting agency an accurate list of all subcontractors or attest that none was used;
- 3) During the term of this contract, the contractor and its affiliates shall collect and remit, and shall notify all subcontractors and their affiliates that they must collect and remit to the Director, New Jersey Division of Taxation, the use tax due pursuant to the Sales and Use Tax Act, (N.J.S.A. 54:32B-1 et seq.) on all sales of tangible personal property delivered into this State.

A contractor, subcontractor or supplier who fails to provide proof of business registration or provides false business registration information shall be liable to a penalty of \$25 for each day of violation, not to exceed \$50,000 for each business registration not properly provided or maintained under a contract with a contracting agency. Information on the law and its requirements is available by calling (609) 292-1730.

If boxes of the following items are checked, they are mandatory requirements of the bid proposal and contract.

□ E. NEW JERSEY WORKER AND COMMUNITY RIGHT TO KNOW ACT

The manufacturer or supplier of chemical substances or mixtures shall label them in accordance with the N.J. Worker and Community Right to Know Law (N.J.S.A. 34:5A-1 et seq., and N.J.A.C 8:59-2 et seq.,). Containers that the law and rules require to be labeled shall show the Chemical Abstracts Service number of all the components and the chemical name. Further, all applicable Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS) - hazardous substance fact sheet - must be furnished.

□ F. PREVAILING WAGE ACT

Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 34:11-56.25 et seq., contractors on projects for public work shall adhere to all requirements of the New Jersey Prevailing Wage Act. The contractor shall be required to submit a certified payroll record to the Township within ten (10) days of the payment of the wages. The contractor is also responsible for obtaining and submitting all subcontractors' certified payroll records within the aforementioned time period. The contractor shall submit said certified payrolls in the form set forth in N.J.A.C. 12:60-6.1(c). It is the contractor's responsibility to obtain any additional copies of the certified payroll form to be submitted by contacting the New Jersey Department of Labor and Workforce Development, Division of Workplace Standards. Additional information is available at www.state.nj.us/labor/lsse/lspubcon.html.

□ G. THE PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACTOR REGISTRATION ACT

N.J.S.A. 34:11-56.48 et seq. requires that a general or prime contractor and any listed subcontractors named in the contractor's bid proposal shall possess a certificate *at the time the bid proposal is submitted*. After bid proposals are received and prior to award of contract, the successful contractor shall submit a copy of the contractor's certification along with those of all listed subcontractors. All non-listed subcontractors and lower tier subcontractors shall be registered prior to starting work on the project. It is the general contractor's responsibility that all non-listed sub-contractors at any tier have their certificate prior to starting work on the job.

Under the law a "contractor" is "a person, partnership, association, joint stock company, trust, corporation or other legal business entity or successor thereof who enters into a contract" which is subject to the provisions of the New Jersey Prevailing Wage Act [N.J.S.A. 34:11-56.25, et seq.] It applies to contractors based in New Jersey or in another state.

The law defines "public works projects" as contracts for "public work" as defined in the Prevailing Wage statute [N.J.S.A. 34:11-56.26(5)]. The term means:

- Construction, reconstruction, demolition, alteration, or repair work, or maintenance work, including painting and decorating, done under contract and paid for in whole or in part out of the funds of a public body, except work performed under a rehabilitation program.
- "Public work" shall also mean construction, reconstruction, demolition, alteration, or repair work, done on any property or premises, whether or not the work is paid for from public funds...
- "Maintenance work" means the repair of existing facilities when the size, type or extent of such facilities is not thereby changed or increased. While "maintenance" includes painting and decorating and is covered under the law, it does not include work such as routine landscape maintenance or janitorial services.

To register, a contractor must provide the State Department of Labor with a full and accurately completed application form. The form is available online at www.state.nj.us/labor/lsse/lspubcon.html.

N.J.S.A. 34:11-56.55 specifically prohibits accepting applications for registration as a substitute for a certificate of registration.

${f X}$ H. NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT

The Affidavit shall be properly executed and submitted with the bid proposal.

I. PAY TO PLAY

Starting in January, 2007, business entities are advised of their responsibility to file an annual disclosure statement of political contributions with the New Jersey Election Law Enforcement Commission (ELEC) pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:44A-20.27 if they receive contracts in excess of \$50,000 from public entities in a calendar year.

Business entities are responsible for determining if filing is necessary. Additional information on this requirement is available from ELEC at 888-313-3532 or at <u>www.elec.state.nj.us</u>.

VIII. METHOD OF CONTRACT AWARD

- A. The length of the contract shall be stated in the technical specifications. Pursuant to requirements of N.J.A.C. 5:30-5.1 et seq., any contract resulting from this bid shall be subject to the availability and appropriation of sufficient funds annually. Please see Section X, Termination of Contract, Sub-section E, for additional information.
- B. If the award is to be made on the basis of a base bid only, it shall be made to that responsible bidder submitting the lowest base bid.
- C. If the award is to be made on the basis of a combination of a base bid with selected options, it shall be made to that responsible bidder submitting the lowest net bid.
- D. The Township may also elect to award the contract on the basis of unit prices.
- E. The form of contract shall be submitted by the Township to the successful bidder. Terms of the specifications/bid package prevail. Bidder exceptions must be formally accepted by the Township.

IX. CAUSES FOR REJECTING BIDS

Bids may be rejected for any of the following reasons:

- A. All bids pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:11-13.2;
- B. If more than one bid is received from an individual, firm or partnership, corporation or association under the same name;
- C. Multiple bids from an agent representing competing bidders;
- D. The bid is inappropriately unbalanced;
- E. The bidder is determined to possess, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:11-4b, Prior Negative Experience; or,
- F. If the successful bidder fails to enter into a contract within 21 days, Sundays and holidays excepted, or as otherwise agreed upon by the parties to the contract. In this case at its option, the Township may accept the bid of the next lowest responsible bidder. (N.J.S.A. 40A:11-24b)

X. TERMINATION OF CONTRACT

- A. If, through any cause, the contractor shall fail to fulfill in a timely and proper manner obligations under the contract or if the contractor shall violate any of the requirements of the contract, the Township shall there upon have the right to terminate the contract by giving written notice to the contractor of such termination and specifying the effective date of termination. Such termination shall relieve the Township of any obligation for balances to the contractor of any sum or sums set forth in the contract. The Township will pay only for goods and services accepted prior to termination.
- B. Notwithstanding the above, the contractor shall not be relieved of liability to the Township for damages sustained by the Township by virtue of any breach of the contract by the contractor and the Township may withhold any payments to the contractor for the purpose of compensation until such time as the exact amount of the damage due the Township from the contractor is determined.

- C. The contractor agrees to indemnify and hold the Township harmless from any liability to subcontractors/suppliers concerning payment for work performed or goods supplied arising out of the lawful termination of the contract by the Township under this provision.
- D. In case of default by the contractor, the Township may procure the goods or services from other sources and hold the contractor responsible for any excess cost.
- E. Continuation of the terms of the contract beyond the fiscal year is contingent on availability of funds in the following year's budget. In the event of unavailability of such funds, the Township reserves the right to cancel the contract.
- F. ACQUISITION, MERGER, SALE AND/OR TRANSFER OF BUSINESS, ETC.

It is understood by all parties that if, during the life of the contract, the contractor disposes of his/her business concern by acquisition, merger, sale and or/transfer or by any means convey his/her interest(s) to another party, all obligations are transferred to that new party. In this event, the new Township(s) will be required to submit all documentation/legal instruments that were required in the original bid/contract. Any change shall be approved by the Township.

- G. The contractor will not assign any interest in the contract and shall not transfer any interest in the same without the prior written consent of the Township.
- H. The Township may terminate the contract for convenience by providing 60 calendar days advanced notice to the contractor.

XI. PAYMENT

- A. No payment will be made unless duly authorized by the Township's authorized representative and accompanied by proper documentation.
- B. Payment will be made in accordance with the Township's policy and procedures.

APPENDIX A

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT OF 1990 Equal Opportunity for Individuals with Disability

The contractor and the Township of Galloway, (hereafter "Township") do hereby agree that the provisions of Title 11 of the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990 (the "Act") (42 U.S.C. S121 01 et seq.), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability by public entities in all services, programs, and activities provided or made available by public entities, and the rules and regulations promulgated pursuant there unto, are made a part of this contract. In providing any aid, benefit, or service on behalf of the Township pursuant to this contract, the contractor agrees that the performance shall be in strict compliance with the Act. In the event that the contractor, its agents, servants, employees, or subcontractors violate or are alleged to have violated the Act during the performance of this contract, the contractor shall defend the Township in any action or administrative proceeding commenced pursuant to this Act. The contractor shall indemnify, protect, and save harmless the Township, its agents, servants, and employees from and against any and all suits, claims, losses, demands, or damages, of whatever kind or nature arising out of or claimed to arise out of the alleged violation. The contractor shall, at its own expense, appear, defend, and pay any and all charges for legal services and any and all costs and other expenses arising from such action or administrative proceeding or incurred in connection therewith. In any and all complaints brought pursuant to the town Township ship's grievance procedure, the contractor agrees to abide by any decision of the towns Township hip which is rendered pursuant to said grievance procedure. If any action or administrative proceeding results in an award of damages against the Township, or if the Township incurs any expense to cure a violation of the ADA which has been brought pursuant to its grievance procedure, the contractor shall satisfy and discharge the same at its own expense.

The Township shall, as soon as practicable after a claim has been made against it, give written notice thereof to the contractor along with full and complete particulars of the claim, If any action or administrative proceeding is brought against the Township or any of its agents, servants, and employees, the Township *shall* expeditiously forward or have forwarded to the contractor every demand, complaint, notice, summons, pleading, or other process received by the Township or its representatives.

It is expressly agreed and understood that any approval by the Township of the services provided by the contractor pursuant to this contract will not relieve the contractor of the obligation to comply with the Act and to defend, indemnify, protect, and save harmless the Township pursuant to this paragraph.

It is further agreed and understood that the Township assumes no obligation to indemnify or save harmless the contractor, its agents, servants, employees and subcontractors for any claim which may arise out of their performance of this Agreement. Furthermore, the contractor expressly understands and agrees that the provisions of this indemnification clause shall in no way limit the contractor's obligations assumed in this Agreement, nor shall they be construed to relieve the contractor from any liability, nor preclude the Township from taking any other actions available to it under any other provisions of the Agreement or otherwise at law.

EXHIBIT A N.J.S.A. 10:5-36 et seq. and N.J.A.C. 17:27 MANDATORY EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY LANGUAGE

Goods, Professional Services and General Service Contracts

During the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees as follows:

The contractor or subcontractor, where applicable, will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of age, race, creed, color, national origin, ancestry, marital status, affectional or sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, disability, nationality or sex. Except with respect to affectional or sexual orientation and gender identity or expression, the contractor will ensure that equal employment opportunity is afforded to such applicants in recruitment and employment, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their age, race, creed, color, national origin, ancestry, marital status, affectional or sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, disability, nationality or sex. Such equal employment opportunity shall include, but not be limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided by the Public Agency Compliance Officer setting forth provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.

The contractor or subcontractor, where applicable will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to age, race, creed, color, national origin, ancestry, marital status, affectional or sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, disability, nationality or sex.

The contractor or subcontractor, where applicable, will send to each labor union or representative or workers with which it has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice, to be provided by the agency contracting officer advising the labor union or workers' representative of the contractor's commitments under this act and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment.

The contractor or subcontractor, where applicable, agrees to comply with any regulations promulgated by the Treasurer pursuant to **N.J.S.A.10:5-36 et seq.** as amended and supplemented from time to time and the Americans with Disabilities Act.

The contractor or subcontractor agrees to attempt in good faith efforts to afford equal employment opportunities to minority and women workers consistent with Good faith efforts to meet targeted county employment goals established in accordance with **N.J.A.C. 17:27-5.2**, or Good faith efforts to meet targeted county employment goals determined by the Division, pursuant to **N.J.A.C. 17:27-5.2**

The contractor or subcontractor agrees to inform in writing appropriate recruitment agencies including, but not limited to, employment agencies, placement bureaus, colleges, universities, labor unions, that it does not discriminate on the basis of age, creed, color, national origin, ancestry, marital status, affectional or sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, disability, nationality or sex, and that it will discontinue the use of any recruitment agency which engages in direct or indirect discriminatory practices.

The contractor or subcontractor agrees to revise any of its testing procedures, if necessary, to assure that all personnel testing conforms with the principles of job-related testing, as established by the statutes and court decisions of the State of New Jersey and as established by applicable Federal law and applicable Federal court decisions.

In conforming with the applicable employment goals, the contractor or subcontractor agrees to review all procedures relating to transfer, upgrading, downgrading and layoff to ensure that all such actions are taken without regard to age, creed, color, national origin, ancestry, marital status, affectional or sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, disability, nationality or sex, and conform with the applicable employment goals, consistent with the statutes and court decisions of the State of New Jersey, and applicable Federal law and applicable Federal court decisions.

The contractor shall submit to the public agency, after notification of award but prior to execution of a goods and services contract, one of the following three documents:

Letter of Federal Affirmative Action Plan Approval Certificate of Employee Information Report Employee Information Report Form AA302

The contractor and its subcontractors shall furnish such reports or other documents to the Division of Public Contracts Equal Employment Opportunity Compliance as may be requested by the office from time to time in order to carry out the purposes of these regulations, and public agencies shall furnish such information as may be requested by the Division of Public Contracts Equal Employment Opportunity Compliance for conducting a compliance investigation pursuant to <u>Subchapter 10 of the Administrative Code at N.J.A.C. 17:27.</u>

Section 3 Specifications

Odor and Corrosion Control Specifications for Bioxide

Part 1 – General

Scope

- A. The material required under this specification shall be used to move hydrogen sulfide, thereby preventing odor and corrosion within wastewater collection system. The material shall utilize and enhance a naturally occurring biochemical processing to accomplish hydrogen sulfide removal.
- B. The material shall be a liquid phase product. It shall be delivered, stored, and fed into the wastewater via standard liquid-phase chemical handling procedures.
- C. The material shall be fully compatible with storage and feed equipment constructed of any of the following:
 - High Density Crosslinked Polyethylene
 - PVC
 - Polypropylene
 - FRP
 - Stainless Steel (316)

Process Description

The material supplies shall utilize the inherent ability of the facultative bacteria normally present in wastewater to metabolize hydrogen sulfide and other odor-causing, reduced sulfur containing compounds. The material shall provide nitrate-oxygen to the wastewater to support this biochemical mechanism. The nitrate-oxygen shall be applied via a calcium nitrate salt solution. The material shall be chemically stable, allowing continuous removal of sulfide contributed by side streams downstream of the application point. As a result of the biochemical process, the material shall provide the additional benefit of biochemical oxygen demand (BOD) reduction in the wastewater.

The Township is aware that Bioxide, Bioxide-AQ, Bioxide AE, BIOXIDE® Plus 71, AQUIT and Full-Service Odor Control are trademarks of Evoqua Water Technologies LLC. Thus, all suppliers must include the cost of any required licensing fees in their bid price. Patents that cover aspects of the use of Bioxide® products include, but are necessarily limited to, United States Patent Nos. 6,309,597, 7,087,172 and 7,553,420 B2. This license must be submitted on the letterhead of the company that owns the patents listed above and the letter must be signed by an officer of the Company.

Supplier

- A. The supplier of this material shall be one recognized and established in the field of wastewater odor control. The supplier must provide a list of five (5) reference currently using the specified product for control of hydrogen sulfide and other compounds. The list shall contain telephone numbers and contact names. All five (5) of these references must have used the material for 5 or more years. Failure to provide the list will result in rejection of the bid.
- B. The supplier shall provide feed rate optimization services and feed system troubleshooting and maintenance services upon the Township's request. There shall be no additional charges for these services.
- C. The supplier shall be capable of responding to any emergencies by providing on-site technical assistance within 24 hours of notification.
- D. The supplier shall employ trained technicians to perform system optimization, and system maintenance/troubleshooting, upon request. The vendor's technicians must be direct employees of the company (no sub-contractors) and shall have a minimum of two (2) years' experience in handling chemicals, testing water/wastewater and maintain/operating chemical dosing equipment as it applies to Hydrogen Sulfide Control in wastewater systems. Al least one technician shall reside within 75 miles driving distance from the Township. Bidders must provide a list of the Technicians with the bid (minimum of three (3)) who will be performing the work. The list shall include detailed information on the qualifications of the Technicians and their locations. Service representative must be OSHA 10 certified. Proof of OSHA 10 certification shall be provided with the bid.
- E. The supplier shall have at least three (3) distribution centers from which product can be shipped. The addresses and storage capacities of these facilities <u>must</u> be provided with the bid. One of the distribution centers must be within 100 miles of the Township's systems.
- F. The supplier shall be capable of manufacturing and providing complete storage and feed systems for the material. These systems shall include storage tanks, feed pumps, and control panels. The supplier shall be an Underwriters Laboratories or Electronic Testing Labs listed manufacturer of Enclosed Industrial Control Panels. Proof of UL or ELT certification shall be provided with the bid.
- G. The supplier shall be Evoqua Water Technologies or pre-approved equal.

Submittals

The bidders must include the following information with their bid:

- A. Safety Data Sheet for the material showing the CAS number of the material.
- B. Reference list as described.
- C. Written statement that licensing fees are included in the bid price.
- D. List of material distribution points as described.

- E. Technical documentation detailing the process by which the material controls hydrogen sulfide. This documentation must clearly show the stoichiometry of the biochemical reaction, describe a minimum of three (3) case studies, and clearly demonstrate compliance.
- F. Proof of UL or ELT certification.
- G. Product data sheet that shows.
- H. Any additional information required by this specification.

Substitutions

The material shall be provided in strict compliance with these specifications. Any bid for a material with deviations from these specifications shall be considered non-responsive and shall not be considered. Any bidder wishing to submit a bid on a substitution product must demonstrate the product with the Township by performing a full-scale trial of the proposed product prior to the bid opening. There will be no charge to the Township for the trial. Bids submitted for products which have not been demonstrated to the Township will not be considered.

Part 2 Product Requirements

Technical Requirements

- A. The material supplied shall be an aqueous solution of calcium nitrate double salt containing a minimum of 3.5 pounds of nitrate-oxygen per gallon and having a minimum specific gravity of 1.42. The product shall be BIOXIDE (CAS# 15245-12-2) of pre-approved equal.
- B. A Certificate of Analysis of the product shall be provided with the bid. The analysis shall be from a 3^{rd} Party Laboratory and hall provide at least the following:
 - Nitrate-Oxygen content of the product
 - Specific Gravity
 - o pH
 - Freezing Point
- C. The material shall be capable of reducing the dissolved hydrogen sulfide concentration in wastewater to less than 0.1 mg/l.
- D. The material shall be free of any objectionable odor-producing compounds.
- E. The pH of the material shall not be less than 4.0 nor greater than 9.0.
- F. The Crystallization point of the material shall be less than -20 degrees F. A crystallization chart shall be provided with the bid. This chart shall be on the letterhead of the manufacturer of the product.
- G. Product shall be manufactured in a facility that complies with the following:
 - o ISO 9001 Quality Management System
 - ISO 14001 Environmental Management System
 - ISO 18001 Health and Safety Management System

Proof of compliance with the above standards shall be provided with the bid.

Safety Requirements

- A. The material shall contain no hazardous substances are defined by both the Federal EPA's and State CERCLA lists.
- B. The material shall be exempt from Federal DOT placard requirements.
- C. Recommended handling procedures for the material shall require protective gloves and safety glasses only. Any material recommending more sophisticated equipment (i.e., face shield, body suit, etc.) during routine handling shall not be considered.

D. The supplier must employ at least two (2) people with a Chemical Engineering degree and one person that is a Certified Safety Professional (CSP) as certified by the Board of Safety Professionals. Proof of compliance with this item shall be provided with the bid.

Part 3 Execution

Delivery

- A. The material shall be delivered by tanker trucks. The supplier <u>must</u> be able to make deliveries in smaller, non-articulating straight trucks. Access to some site is limited and deliveries to all sites via tractor trailer are not possible. Proof of the ability to make deliveries with a straight truck must be provided with the bid.
- B. Deliveries shall be made to the following locations:
 - Blue Heron PS #7
 - Cologne Avenue PS #6
 - Moss Mill PS #23
 - Wrangleboro Road PS #4
 - Smith Bowen PS #11
 - South Egg Harbor PS #17
 - Grist Mill PS #25
- C. The supplier shall be responsible for the safe, clean delivery of the material into the Owner's storage tanks. The supplier shall be responsible for any damage to the Owner's storage tank and feed system that is directly attributed to product quality or improper delivery practices. The supplier shall provide prompt clean-up of any spills made during delivery.
- D. The supplier shall be responsible for the proper labeling of storage tanks in compliance with local, state and federal requirements. The supplier shall bot deliver the material into any tank or vessel which is not properly labeled.
- E. Deliveries shall be made in trucks that are operated by the supplier and the drivers must be a direct employee of the supplier. Subcontractors or third-party carriers will not be allowed. A letter that certifies this requirement shall be provided with the bid.

Service

- A. The supplier shall provide yearly system maintenance and calibration to ensure proper operation of the Township's feed system.
 - Pump Calibration and Feed Rate Setting
 - Replacement of "wear and tear" part if necessary
 - General Cleanup of System
- B. The Supplier shall provide testing and feed rate optimization services for all feed locations in the Township's collection system. In cases where feed locations are in series with each other, the system shall be evaluated as a whole for optimization.

- C The testing will be performed annually and shall encompass both liquid and vapor phase monitoring. Data collected shall include the following:
 - Dissolved Hydrogen Sulfide
 - Atmospheric Hydrogen Sulfide (monitors with data logging capabilities)
 - o pH
 - Wastewater Temperature
 - Chemical Residual

D. The Supplier shall be responsible for optimizing the feed rates to meet the treatment goals set by the Township. A report summarizing the sampling/monitoring will be made available upon the request of the Township after each routine service period.

Pricing

- A. The supplier shall provide pricing in terms of price per gallon of solution delivered. The minimum nitrate-oxygen content and specific gravity of the solution must be provided with the bid and must be expressed as pounds nitrate-oxygen per gallon of solution. All charges, including freight, optimization services, etc. shall be included in the per gallon bid price.
- B. The price shall be valid for delivery quantities of 500 gallons or more per shipment.
- C. In some cases, it will be necessary to split deliveries between two or more locations. The vendor will provide this service at no additional cost to the Township. Any charge for multiple stops shall be included in the per-gallon bid price.

Contact Person:

Tim McKenna, Superintendent of Utilities Email: <u>tmckenna@gtnj.org</u> Phone: 609-652-0217

BIOXIDE@ CHEMICAL FEED SYSTEM AND STARTUP SERVICES GALLOWAY TOWNSHIP, NJ - PUMP STATIONS

1. SCOPE OF SUPPLY

- 1- 2,650 Nominal Gallon Single Wall High Density Cross-I-inked Polyethylene Chemical Storage Tank, (8'0" Diameter, 8'9" Tall, Specific Gravity 1.90)
- 1- Complete UL Approved, 316 Stainless Steel Control and Calibration Unit to Control two Feed Pumps. The Control Unit shall consist of:
 - 1- Operator Interface with tank level readout
 - 1- 316 SS Control Enclosure
 - 1- Ground Fault Convenience Receptacle
 - 3- On/Off Switch
 - 1- Calibration Cylinder with Flow Control Valves
 - 1- Pressure Transducer Level Probe
 - 1- 15907-002 Bellows Pumps with an adjustable feed rate from 12 to 120 mL/min and a maximum discharge pressure of 35 psi
 - 1- 1590-001 Bellows Pumps with an adjustable feed rate from 5 to 50 mL/min and a maximum discharge pressure of 35 psi.
 - 1-1,000 ml- Calibration Cylinder with Flow Control Valves
 - 1- Cellular Modem

1- Single Wall Piping Kit shall consist of:

- 40 ft ¹/₂" Schedule Polyethylene Tubing or Schedule 80 PVC Pipe.
- 1- 2" Stainless Steel Male Camlock
- 1- 2" Plastic Female Camlock Cap.
- 1- 2" Schedule 80 PVC Fill Line
- 1- Mechanical Installation Services (Optional)
- 1- Day of Startup Services and Personnel Training
- 1- Engineering Submittals for Approval, plus electronic copy
- 1- Operations Manual Copies

2. SITE AND UTILITIES

Contractor shall be responsible for having certain facets of site preparation completed prior to Installation of the Chemical Feed System. This includes, but is not limited to dewatering, concrete work, trenching, containment piping, excavation, backfill, piping and electrical. Additionally, the customer shall be required to supply the following for the Chemical Feed System:

- Power—15A/120VAC / IPH (provided within 10' of equipment)
- Floor Space 12' x 12' minimum concrete pad preferred
- Tanker Access for chemical delivery
- Customer supplied dry contacts or 4-20 mA flow signal (if applicable)

Mechanical Installation Services include:

- Tank penetrations
- Installation of fill piping on tank
- Installation of U-vent
- Installation of suction piping from tank to pumps
- Installation of overfill site gauge
- Installation of calibration relief/overfill line
- Installation of pressure or ultrasonic transducing sensor, and HI/LO Kit, when required.
- Mounting and placement of feed system

Mechanical Installation Services exclude:

- Setting of the tank or provision of crane (if needed)
- Electrical supply or connections
- Any concrete work, trenching, excavation, and backfill
- Any Below grade piping

Note: Should the Contractor decide to forego Evoqua's optional equipment installation services, the Contractor shall be responsible for all facets of installation and site preparation.

3. SCHEDULE

Submittals3-5 weeks after contract acceptanceEquipment10-14 weeks after receipt of approved submittals

The delivery schedule is based on credit approval and receipt of approved P.O.

4. WARRANTY

The warranty of the Chemical Feed System complete for a period of twelve (12) months from acceptance or eighteen (18) months from shipment, whichever occurs first. In addition, the chemical storage tank shall be warranted for a period of five (5) years from warranty start date.

Section 4 Required Documents to be Submitted with Bid/Proposal

BID DOCUMENT SUBMISSTION CHECKLIST

Name of Project: Odor and Corrosion Control #23-001

		(Bidders' Initials)
X	Bid Document Check List	
X	Proposal Page(s)	
X	Acknowledgment of Receipt of Addenda (If Applicable)	
X	Hold Harmless	
X	Stockholder Disclosure Certification (form must be notarized)	
X	Non-Collusion Affidavit (form must be notarized)	
X	Bidder's Affidavit (this form must be notarized)	
X	List of Subcontractors (form must be notarized)	
X	Disclosure of Investment Activities in Iran	
X	Affirmative Action Compliance Notice	
X	Disclosure Statement	
X	Right to Extend	
X	5 References	
X	W-9	
X	Business Registration Certificate	
X	Proof of General and Automobile Liability Insurance	
X	All required certifications, licenses, and business permit information (If Applicable)	
X	BIDDERS MUST SUBMIT ONE (1) ORIGINAL AND ONE (1) COPY OF ALL REQUIRED DOCUMENTS	

<u>THE UNDERSIGNED HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGES THE SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS</u> DETAILED HEREIN AND HAS SUBMITTED THE DOCUMENTS LISTED ABOVE.

Name of Bidder:

By Authorized Representative:

Signature: Date:	
------------------	--

Print Name & Title: _____

Note: Failure to include notarized Stockholder Disclosure Certification, List of Subcontractors and Acknowledgment of the receipt of Addenda (if any) with your bid/proposal, will be deemed a fatal, non-curable defect.

Name	of	Bidder:
	••	

BIOXIDE ODOR AND CORROSION CONTROL

BIOXIDE SOLUTION PRICE PER GALLON	\$				
BIOXIDE@ CHEMICAL FEED	SYSTEM AND STARTUP SERVICI	ES			
Bioxide Feed and Storage Equipment	\$				
Startup Services	\$				
Total Price Excluding Installation Services					
Installation Services (Optional)	\$				
(Corporate) The undersigned is a (Partnership) under the laws of the State of					
Principal office at					
Company	Federal I.D. # or Social Secur	rity # Address			
		_ 11001000			
Signature of Authorized Agent	Type or Print Name				
Title of Authorized Agent	Date				
Telephone Number	Email Address				

Fax Number

TOWNSHIP OF GALLOWAY

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT OF ADDENDA

The undersigned Bidder does hereby acknowledge the receipt of the following Addenda:

ADDENDUM NUMBER	DATE	ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT (Initial)
Acknowledgement for:	(Name of Bidder)	
Ву:		
	(Signature of the Authorized Represer	ntative)
Name:	(Please Print or Type)	
Title:		
Date:		
Signature:		
Print name:		

Township of Galloway

Exceptions

All exceptions or deviations must be noted in detail by the bidder in writing. If the exception/deviation is deemed to not be "equal to" or "to exceed" the specified item, by the Township, the bidder will be held to the original specification at no change in cost. Submitting product brochures is not an acceptable claim of equivalent.

(IF **NONE**, PLEASE STATE)

USE ADDITIONAL SHEET IF NECESSARY

HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT

To the fullest extent permitted by law, _________ shall indemnify, save harmless and defend the Township of Galloway, its appointed officials, its employees, agents, volunteers and others from and against any and all claims, losses, costs, attorney's fees, damages, or injury including death and/or property loss, expense claims or demands arising out of or caused or alleged to have be caused in any manner by a defect in any equipment or materials supplied under this contract or by the negligent performance of any work under this contract, including all suits or actions of every kind or description brought against the Township of Galloway, either individually or jointly with _______ for or on account of any damage or injury to any person or persons or property, caused or occasioned or alleged to have been caused by, or on account of, the negligent performance of any work pursuant to or in connection with this contract or through any negligence or alleged negligence in safeguarding the work area, or through any negligent act, omission or fault or alleged act, omission or fault or alleged act, omission or fault of ________ contract.

By: _____

Contractor

Attest

STOCKHOLDER DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATION This Statement Shall Be Included with Bid Submission

Name of Business

Π

Stockholdora

I certify that the list below contains the names and home addresses of all stockholders holding 10% or more of the issued and outstanding stock of the undersigned.

OR

I certify that no one stockholder owns 10% or more of the issued and outstanding stock of the undersigned.

If a corporation owns all or part of the stock of the corporation or partnership submitting the bid, then the statement shall include a list of the stockholders who own 10% or more of the stock of any class of that owning corporation. If no one owns 10% or more stock, attest to that.

Check the box that represents the type of business organization:

Partnership		Sole Proprietorship
Limited Partnership	Limited Liability Corporation	Limited Liability Partnership
Subchapter S Corporation		

Sign and notarize the form below, and, if necessary, complete the stockholder list below.

Name:
Home Address:
Name:
Home Address:
<u> </u>
Name:
Home Address:

Subscribed and sworn before me this ____ day of _____, 2 ___.

(Notary Public)

My Commission expires:

(Affiant)

(Print name & title of affiant)

(Corporate Seal)

End of Stockholder Disclosure Certificate

NON COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT

State of New Jersey County of	
I, residing i (name of affiant)	n (name of municipality)
(name of amant)	(name of municipality)
in the County of and full age, being duly sworn according to law on	d State of of of my oath depose and say that:
I am of t (title or position)	he firm of
(title or position)	(name of firm)
	the bidder making the Proposal for the bid entitled
(title of proposal)	, and that I executed the said proposal with full
participated in any collusion, or otherwise tak in connection with the above named project and in this affidavit are true and correct, a Galloway relies upon the truth of the stateme contained in this affidavit in awarding the cont I further warrant that no person or selling a secure such contract upon an agreement brokerage or contingent fee, except bona fide	agency has been employed or retained to solicit or or understanding for a commission, percentage, e employees or bona fide established commercial or
selling agencies maintained by	(name of contractor)
Subscribed and sworn to	
before me this day	Signature
, 2	(Type or print name of affiant under signature)
Notary public of	
My Commission expires	

(Seal)

BIDDER'S AFFIDAVIT

(This Affidavit is part of the Proposal or Bid)

State of New Jersey	
County of	
being duly sworn, deposes and says that he/she resides at	
	that he/she is the
(give title)	_who signed the
above Proposal or Bid, that he/she was duly authorized to sign and that the Propo	osal or Bid is the true offer of
the Bidder, that the seal attached is the seal of the Bidder and that all the	declarations and statements

contained in the Bid are true to the best of his/her knowledge and belief.

Subscribed and sworn to before me at

this_____day of_____ 20____

Signature of Bidder (Seal)

Notary Public

My Commission Expires

List of Subcontractors

<u>Please fill out in totality to avoid automatic rejection of bid. In the event any</u> of the below categories are not applicable, please indicate so by inserting <u>"N/A".</u>

I, or we___

(Name of Company)

In compliance with Section 16 of P.L. 1971, c. 198 (C.40A:11-16), as amended by P.L. 1997, c 408 adopted January 19, 1998, hereby certify that I/we will employ the following subcontractors for this project:

Category of Work	
Name and Address of Subcontractor	
Scope of Work	
Amount to be paid for this work	
State License #	
Category of Work	
Name and Address of Subcontractor	
Scope of Work	
Amount to be paid for this work	
State License #	

Category of Work	
Name and Address of	
Subcontractor	
Scope of Work	
Amount to be paid for	
this work	
State License #	
Category of Work	
Name and Address of	
Subcontractor	
Scope of Work	
Amount to be paid for	
this work	
State License #	

In the event any of the above categories are not applicable, please indicate so by inserting "N/A". Failure to complete this form will result in a disqualification of the bid.

(Contracting Company Name)	
By:	(Seal)
Print name:	
Title:	

End of List of Subcontractors

TOWNSHIP OF GALLOWAY

PROHIBITED RUSSIA-BELARUS ACTIVITIES & IRAN INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES DISCLOSURE.

Bidder:

PART 1: CERTIFICATION COMPLETE PART 1 BY CHECKING ONE OF THE THREE BOXES BELOW

Pursuant to law, any person or entity that is a successful bidder or proposer, or otherwise proposes to enter into or renew a contract, for goods or services must complete the certification below prior to contract award to attest, under penalty of perjury, that neither the person or entity, nor any parent entity, subsidiary, or affiliate, is identified on the Department of Treasury's Russia-Belarus list or Chapter 25 list as a person or entity engaging in prohibited activities in Russia, Belarus or Iran. Before a contract for goods or services can be amended or extended, a person or entity must certify that neither the person or entity, nor any parent entity, subsidiary, or affiliate, is identified on the Department of Treasury's Russia-Belarus list. Both lists are found on Treasury's website at the following web addresses:

https://www.nj.gov/treasury/administration/pdf/RussiaBelarusEntityList.pdf. http://www.state.ni.us/treasury/purchase/pdf/Chapter25List.pdf.

As applicable to the type of contract, the above-referenced lists must be reviewed prior to completing the below certifications.

A person or entity unable to make the certification must provide a detailed, accurate, and precise description of the activities of the person or entity, or of a parent entity, subsidiary, or affiliate, engaging in prohibited activities in Russia of Belarus and/or investment activities in Iran. The person or entity must cease engaging in any prohibited activities and provide an updated certification before the contract can be entered into.

If a vendor or contractor is found to be in violation of law, action may be taken as appropriate and as may be provided by law, rule, or contract, including but not limited to imposing sanctions, seeking compliance, recovering damages, declaring the party in default, and seeking debarment or suspension of the party.

PLEASE CHECK THE APPROPRIATE BOX:

CONTRACT AWARDS AND RENEWALS

I certify, pursuant to law, that neither the person or entity listed above nor any parent entity, subsidiary, or affiliate appears on the N.J. Department of Treasury's list of entities engaged in prohibited activities in Russia or Belarus pursuant to PL. 2022, c. 3 or in investment activities in Iran pursuant to PL. 2012, c. 25 ("Chapter 25 List"). I further certify that I am the person listed above, or I am an officer or representative of the entity listed above and am authorized to make this certification on its behalf. (Skip Part 2 and sign and complete the Certification below.)

CONTRACT AMENDMENTS AND EXTENSIONS.

I certify, pursuant to law, that neither the person or entity listed above nor any parent entity, subsidiary, or affiliate appears on the N.J. Department of Treasury's list of entities engaged in prohibited activities in Russia or Belarus pursuant to PL. 2022, c. 3 or in investment activities in Iran pursuant to PL. 2012, c. 25 ("Chapter 25 List"). I further certify that I am the person listed above, or I am an officer or representative of the entity listed above and am authorized to make this certification on its behalf. (Skip Part 2 and sign and complete the Certification below.)

IF UNABLE TO CERTIFY

I am unable to certify as above because the person or entity and/or a parent entity, subsidiary, or affiliate is listed on the Department's Russia-Belarus list and/or Chapter 25 Iran list. I will provide a detailed, accurate, and precise description of the activities as directed in Part 2 below, and sign and complete the Certification below. Failure to provide such will prevent the award of the contract to the person or entity, and appropriate penalties, fines and/or sanctions will be assessed as provided by law.

PART 2: Additional Information

PLEASE PROVIDE FURTHER INFORMATION RELATED TO PROHIBITED ACTIVITIES IN RUSSIA OR BELARUS AND/OR INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES IN IRAN.

You must provide a detailed, accurate and precise description of the activities of the person or entity, or of a parent entity, subsidiary, or affiliate, engaging in prohibited activities in Russia or Belarus and/or investments activities in Iran in the space below and, if needed, on additional sheets provided by you.

PART 3: CERTIFICATION OF TRUE AND COMPLET INFORMATION

I, being duly sworn upon my oath, hereby represent and state that the foregoing information and any attachments there, to the best of my knowledge, are true and complete. I attest that I am authorized to execute this certification on behalf of the above-referenced person or entity.

I, acknowledge that the Township of Galloway is relying on the information contained herein and hereby acknowledge that I am under a continuing obligation from the date of this certification through the completion of any contracts with the Township of Galloway to notify the Township of Galloway in writing of any changes to the answers of information contained herein.

I, acknowledge that I am aware that it is a criminal offense to make a false statement or misrepresentation in this certification. If I do so, I recognize that I am subject to criminal prosecution under the law and that it will also constitute a material breach of my agreement(s) with the Township of Galloway and that the Township of Galloway at its option may declare any contract(s) resulting from this certification void and unenforceable.

Full Name (Print): Signature.

Title: ______Date: _____

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION COMPLIANCE NOTICE N.J.S.A. 10:5-36 and N.J.A.C. 17:27

GOODS AND SERVICES CONTRACTS (INCLUDING PROFESSIONAL SERVICES)

This form is a summary of the successful bidder's requirement to comply with the requirements of N.J.S.A. 10:5-31 and 17:27.

The successful bidder shall submit to the Township of Galloway, after the notification of award but prior to execution of this contract, one of the following three documents as forms of evidence:

1. A photocopy of a valid letter that the contractor is operating under an existing Federally approved or sanctioned affirmative action program (good for one (1) year from the date of the letter);

OR

2. A photocopy of a Certificate of Employee Information Report approval, issued in accordance with N.J.A.C. 17:27-4;

OR

3. A photocopy of an Employee Information Report (AA302) provided by the Division and distributed to the Township of Galloway to be completed by the contractor in accordance with N.J.A.C. 17:27-4.

The successful vendor may obtain the Affirmative Action Employee Information Report (AA302) from the Township of Galloway during normal business hours.

The successful vendor(s) must submit the copies of the AA302 Report to the Division of Contract Compliance and Equal Employment Opportunity in Public Contracts (Division). The Public Agency copy is submitted to the Township of Galloway, and the vendor retains the vendor copy.

The undersigned vendor certifies that he/she is aware of the commitment to comply with the requirements of N.J.S.A. 10:5-36 and N.J.A.C. 17:27 and agrees to furnish the required forms of evidence.

The undersigned vendor further understands that his/her bid shall be rejected as non-responsive if said contractor fails to comply with the requirements of N.J.S.A. 10:5-36 and N.J.A.C. 17:27.

Company:	Title:
Print Name:	Signature:

Date: _____

DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

I warrant that no Director, Officer or Employee of our company has a family member employed by or affiliated with the Township of Galloway.

Name of Bidder:_____

By authorized Representative:

Signature:_____

Print Name and Title:_____

Date:_____

Please list five (5) references of recent customers who can verify the quality of service your company provides.

THIS FORM MUST BE RETURNED WITH YOUR PROPOSAL.

	<u>REFERENCE ONE</u>	
Government/Customer		
Address:		
Contact Person and Title:		
Phone:	Fax:	
Contract Period:	Amount of Contract	
Scope of Work:		
	REFERENCE TWO	
Address:		
Contact Person and Title:		
Phone:	Fax:	
Contract Period:	Amount of Contract	
Scope of Work:		
	<u>REFERENCE THREE</u>	
Government/Customer		
Address:		
Contact Person and Title:		
	Fax:	
Contract Period:	Amount of Contract	
Scope of Work:		

REFERENCE FOUR

Government/Customer		
Address:		
Contact Person and Title:		
Phone:	Fax:	
Contract Period:	Amount of Contract	
Scope of Work:		-

RIGHT TO EXTEND – TIME OF AWARD

The Township of Galloway is required by The Local Public Contracts Law, <u>N.J.S.A.</u> 40A:11-24, to make an award on products or service within sixty (60) days of the bid opening date.

Should the Township of Galloway require an additional thirty (30) days extension to make an award of this bid, by signing this document you shall grant the Township of Galloway, NJ the right to extend this award up to ninety (90) days, if deemed necessary.

Name of Bidder:
By authorized Representative:
Signature:
Print Name and Title:
Date:
Type of Product or Service Offered: